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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MINDA MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying ind AS financial statements of Minda Management
Services Limited (“the company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018 the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Cash Flow
and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (collectively referred io as “Ind AS
financial statements”)

Management’s Responsibility for the ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash flow and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
. Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of The Act,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
ihe preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatemeni, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.




AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MINDA MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounis and
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act, in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the statement of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at 31% March 2018, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
enclose in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the said order, to the extent appiicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) [n our opinion praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of changes in equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified in Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a direcior in terms of section 164 (2)
of the Act.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MINDA MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

f)

g)

Place : New Deihi
Date : 25" May 2018

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”; and

With respect fo the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required {o be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosure in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealing in
specified bank notes during the period from 8" November, 2016 to 30"
December, 2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial
year ended 31 March 2018,

FOR R.N.SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Registration No. 002023N)

i

posetin] =

R.N. SARAF, F.C.A.
{(Membership No. 12439)
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBER OF MINDA
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of information and
explanations given to us, we state that:-

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding
quantitative details and the situation of fixed assets.

{b) The fixed assets has been physically verified by the management at the year end.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

(c) The company does not own an immovable property hence, particulars of title deed does
not apply.

(i} The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the requirement of clause 3(ify
(a), (b) and (c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

(i} According to information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed, we are of the opinion that provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been complied with in respect of investments by the Company. There are
no loan, guarantees and securities provided by the company as specified under section
185 and 186 of the companies act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable.

{iv) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

V) The nature of the Company's business is such that maintenance of cost records specified
by the central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, is
not applicable.

(vi) {(a) According to the records, information and explanations provided to us, Company
is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employee's state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and
services tax and other and other statutory dues applicable to it and no undisputed
amounts payable were outstanding as at 31 March, 2018 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBER OF MINDA
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

{xiii)

{xiv}

(b)  There is no material dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs or
duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. There were no dues
repayable to debenture holders, government and financiat institutions.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not paid / provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V o the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company; accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statement as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non<cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDRITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBER OF MINDA

MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(xv)  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934.

FOR R.N.SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
{Registration No. 002023N)

IEW DELHL, o
. ~ R.N. SARAF, F.C.A.
(Membership No. 12439)

Place : New Delhi
Date : 25" May, 2018
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
MINDA MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED ON THE INTERNAL FINANACIAL CONTROLS
UNDER CLAUSE (i} OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(“THE ACT").

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MINDA MANAGEMENT
SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”} as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") and the Standards an Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prascribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obfain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controts over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repoerting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial conirols over financial reporting, including
the passibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chariered Accountants of India.

FOR R.N.SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

%('\ {(Registration No. 002023N)
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Place : New Delhi Ottt R.N. SARAF, F.C.A.
Date : 25™ MAY, 2018 I (Membership Ne. 12439)



Minda Menagement Services Limnited

Batance Sheer as a3 31 Marclh 2018
CIN NO, U74140DL2004PLC125552

T in milkion

Not Asat Asat Asat
Particuiars noes 31 Mareh 2018 | 31 Alarch 2017 | 1 Aprii 2016
ASSETS
Nen-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 21 51.89 12.76 15.99
Other Intangible assets 22 0.74 G.93 1.18
Fimucial assets
i, Investments 23 0.00 {2 1.00
i, Loans 24 149 270 326
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 13335 18.54 10.07
[ncome tax assets {net) 26 48.25 60.72 53,98
Total non-current assefs [16.72 53,74 $.4.48
Current assets
Financial assets
i, Trade receivables 27 13833 113.83 14423
. Cash and cash equivalents 28 174 337 6.53
iii.  Other bank balances 29 - 0.87 .81
iv.  Other financial assets 210 6.14 2.89 350
Other current assets ER 28.32 2761 10.56
Total current assets 174.53 143.57 163.03
Total assets 291.25 244.31 251,53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 212 33.00 33.00 35.00
Other equity 213 68.35 3021 67.20
Total equity 123.35 105.21 122,29
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 2.14 15.09 - -
Provisions 215 2333 18,28 17.43
Total non-current liabilitics 38.42 [3.2 17.43
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 2.16 50.00 79.46 79.40
il. Trade payables 217 20.87 211 1627
iii, Other financial liabilities 218 45.87 1611 974
Other current liabilities 219 12.02 9.52 §.86
Provisionsg 230 0.72 .62 .63
Total current liabilifics 120,48 120.82 112.90
Total equity and fiabilitics 191,25 24431 252,53

Significant aceounting policies

The accompanying notes from | to2.40 fonn an integrat part of the financial statenzents

As per our report of even date
For R.MN.Saml & Co
Chartered Accomntanis
{Registration Ne. 002023N)

Ao Fos fmr

R.N. Saral, F.CA.
Membership No. 12439

Place : New Delhi
Date : 25th May, 2018

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of Minda Managensent Services Limited
-~

plezane”

Ajay Sancheti
Director
Din: 00035472

oCy

Shitly Garg

Company Secretin, ACS No. 10155

Ashok Minda
Director
Din; 00054727



flinua Managerent Servaces Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN NO. B74140DL2004PLC1 23552
% in illien

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes 31 March 2018 3 Mareh 2017
Revenue
Revenue from operttions julied 362,88 14 49
Other imcony: juicics ERE 335
Total revenne 37042 317.82
Exptnses
Employeebenefits expense 223 19244 18391
Finange costs i 7.80 516
Depreciation and amortization expense 20&22 14.87 340
Other expenses 225 135.99 146 93
Totzl expeases 35410 344,40
Profit/ {foss) from operations before 1axes [3.92 -26.38
Tax expense
Current tax 0.19 0.1
Deferred tax charge/ {credit} 479 -847
Profit/ (loss) for the year 10.94 -[5.22
Otlier coruprehensive income
Item that will net be reclassified 1o profit or loss
-Remeasurements of defined benefit abifity (assets) (net of Tax) 1.05 123
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes 1.05 1,23
Total corprehiensive inconse/ (loss) for the year [(.99 -16.99
Earsings per equity share
Basic 218 =309
Dituted 2.i8 =309
Significant accounting pedicies t
The accompanying notes from | to 2.40 form za integral part of the financial statements
As per ourreport of even date For and on behall of the Board of Directors of Minda Management Services Limite

For R.N.Saraf & Co
Chartered Accmntanis X
(Registration No. G02023N) G{A\’ O%C?}

Ajay Sancheti

Director Director
Din: 00033472 B 00054727

ﬁ- =t ;//—“—_.r
R, N, Saraf, F.C.A,

Menibership No. 12439

a

Place : New Delhi Shaly Garg
Date : 25th May, 2018 Compasy Scerctary, ACS No, J0ESS




Mindz Management Services Limited
Statement of Changes i Equity for the year ented 31 March 2018

CIN NO. U741 49DL2060PLC125552

A Eqaity share capital

Particulars T in million

Maiance as 2t 01 April. 2016 35U
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended 31 March. 2017 \

Balance as a4 33 Marcis, 2017 55,08

Changes 1 equaty share capital during the year ended 33 March. 2018

Balance as at 31 March. 2018 5300

B. Bther equity

Attributable 10 gwners of the Company T in million
Reserves and surplus
n Other Comprehensive
Income (2}
Particulars
Capitai reserve Retained earnings | Remensusrement of defined Total
benelit obligations
Balance as at 01 April 2016 §7.20 6720
Profitf{loss) for the year -18.22 -38.22
Other comprehensive income 123 1.23
Totat income for the year -1822 123 -16.99
Balance as at 31 Marck 2017 - 48,98 [23 50,21
Dalaace as at 01 April 2017 - 48.98 1.23 5024
Profit{oss) for the year 10.94 1094
Amount transferred to Employee stock compensation G.15 - 6.15
Qiher coniprehensive income 1.05 1.05
Balance ay al 31 March 2018 615 59.92 2.28 48,35
Significant accounting poligics
The acconspanying notes Fon: 1 to 2.40 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of ¢ven dage Far ar:d on behall of the Board of Directors of Minds Masnagenment Services Liniited
For R.N.Saral & Co ~
Chartered Accortntants
{Registeation No. 002023N) C/g)] m O,{%
2
Ajay Sancheti Ashok Mindn -

/? [y Oy Director Director
R. N, Saraf, F. Din: 00055472 Dinz: 00654727
Memberskip Ne, 12439 é
Place : New Delhi Shalu Garg

Date : 25th May, 2018 Compnany Secretary, ACS No. 40155



Statement

Minda Management Services Limited
of Cash Flow for the vear ended 31 March, 2018
CEN NO, U74140DL2004PLC125552

¥ in million

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss} before taxation 17.37 -25.33
Adjustments for:
Employvees Stock Compensation Expenses 6.15 -
Depreciation and snortisation 14.87 340
Loss on sale ¢ discard of fixed assets 0.09 0.18
Finance costs 7.80 8.16
Exchange Fluctuation {Profit}'Loss (net) 235 1.19
lnterest income -4.79 -3.33
39.14 -3 74
Adjustments for
(Increase)’ decrease in Trade Receivables -22.13 26,21
{Increase)’ decrease in Other financial assats -3.25 3.02
(Increase) decrease in Non current financial assets 0.36 0.47
(Increase) decrease in Other current assets -G.71 -17.035
{Increase) decrease in (Qther Bank Balance 0.87 -0.07
-24.04 15,57
Adjustments for
increase / {decrease) in Trade pavables -6.24 4.83
Increase - {decices2) sn Other fivancial habilities 31575 0.37
{ncrease / {decrease: in Other curremt liabilites 2.50 3.66
Increase ! (deevease) i Short-tenn provisions .11 -0.02
Increase . (decrcase) in Long-term provisions 3.03 43.17 0.85 8.71
Cash generated from operations §7.37 10.54
Income taxes paid 12.28 -6.85
Net cash {used in)/ generated operating activities (A) 69.65 3.69
Cash flnw from investing aclivities
(Purchase)isale of fixed assets -33.90 =241
Tuterest received from bank 4.79 333
-49.11 1.22
Nef cash (used in)/ gencrated investing activities (B) -49,11 1.22
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term hostowings £5.09 -
Repayment 1o other short-term boerrowings -20.46 0.08
Finance cost -7.80 -8.16
2247 -8.1G
Net cash (used in)/ gererated financing activities (C) -22.17 -8.10
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) -1.63 «3.19
Cash and ¢ash eouivalents at the beginning of the vear 3.37 6.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the ead of the vear 1.74 3.37

Significant accowsting policies

The accompanying notes from 1 1o 2.40 formn an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For R.N.Saraf & Co
Chartered Acconntants
{Registration No. 002023XN)
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R, N. Saraf, F.C.A.
Membership No. 12439

-

Place : New Delhi
Date : 25th May, 2018
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Ajay Sancheti
Director
Din: 06055472

T

Shalu Garg

Company Secretary. ACS No. 40155

Ashok Minda
Director
Din: 00054727



Minda Management Services Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Note 1.1 Corporate Information
Minda Management Services Limited (“the Company”} was incorporated in India. The Company is
primarily invoived in providing management consuftancy and business support services to the Spark
Minda Mr. Ashok Minda Group Company.

Note 1.2 Basis of Preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the ~Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company’s first financial stalements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An
explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 2.36.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 25 May, 2018.

A. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in indian ¥ {INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All the amount have been rounded-off to the nearest million ¥ unless otherwise indicated.

B. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

(a) Certain financial assets and liabilities { Fair value

{(b)  Net defined benefit (asset)/ Hability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

C. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Critical estimates and judgements
Areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

-Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax— Note 2.30

-Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets— Note 2.1 and Note
2.2

-Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions— Note 2.3}

-Fair value measurement- Note 2.32

-Share based payments- Note 2.33




Minda Management Services Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

D. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values. for
both financial and non-financial assets and labilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows,

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or Habilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observabie for the asset or
liabitity, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indivectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fajr value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used 10 measure the fair value of an asset or 2 liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Also, fair value of financial instruments measured at
amortised cost is disclosed in Note 2.32;

E. Current-non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(1) Itisexpected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

(2) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(3} 1tis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(4) Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
tiability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(1} It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycie;

(3} Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(3) Itis due to be settled within I2 months afier the reporting date; or

{4} The Company does not have an unconditicnal right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are classified as non- current assets and fabilities respectively.
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Minda Management Services Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Note 1.3 Summery of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these
financial statements.

a) Foreign currency transactions and translations
Funetional and presentation currency

The management has determined the curency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates i.e., functional currency, to the India ¥. All amounts have been rounded-off to the tow
decimal.

(i}  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of the transactions.

{ii) Foreign currency loans covered by forward exchange contracts are translated at the rate
prevailing on the date of transaction as increased or decreased by the proportionate difference
between the forward contract and exchange rate on the date of transaction.

(iii} Current assets and liabilities (other than those relating to fixed assets and investmenis) are
restated at the rates prevailing at the year-end or at the forward rate where forward cover has
been taken. The difference between exchange rate at the year end and at the date of transaction
is recognized as income or expense in Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect of transactions
covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the contract rate and the rate
on the date of transaction is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Firancial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial Habilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss {(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVQCI -~ equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions ard is not
designated as at FVTPL.:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
asat FVTPL:




Minda Management Services Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both coflecting
coniractual cash flows and seiling financial assets: and

- the coniractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principai amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
vajue basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assefs at FVTPL: These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses.
including any interest or dividend incorte. are recognised in profit or loss. However, see Note 3(b)(iii) for
derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and guins and losses.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as heldBforBtrading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or oss. Any gain or loss on DE recognition is also recognised in
profit or loss. See Note 3(b)(iii) for financial liabilities designated as hedging instruments.

De- recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially al} of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised,

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new linancial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financiaj liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial [iabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a [egally enforceabie right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Reqn, No. 002023 1) . ‘
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Minda Management Services Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures, Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the
host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured
at fair value. and changes therein are generally recogrised in profit or loss,

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates and certain derivatives and non@derivative financial liabilities as hedges of foreign exchange
risk on a net investment in a foreign operation,

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument. including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged
item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cuash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging irstrument, the effective portion of changes in the
fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the other equity under ‘effective
portion of cash flow hedges’. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is
recognised in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a
present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative is recognised immediately in profit or toss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts
as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The change in fair value of the forward
elernent of forward exchange contracts (*forward points®) is separately accounted for as a cost of hedging
and recognised separately within equity.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a nonBfinancial item such
as inventory, the amount accumulated in other equity is included directly in the initial cost of the
nonBfinancial item when it is recognised. For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in other equity is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the
hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss,

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is
terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting
tor cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in other equity remains there
until, for a hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a nonBEfinancial item, it is included in the
non@financial item’s cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified 10 profic
or loss in the same period or periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been
accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or Joss.

c) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
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bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling ang
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives. then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Traunsition to Ind AS

On wansition to ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of s property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that
carrying vaiue as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment (see Note 2.36)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefils associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on propeity, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method at the rates
reflective of the estimated useful life of the assets estimated by the management.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready to use. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided
upto the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.

Premium paid on leasehold land and site development is amortised over the period of lease. Leasehold
improvements are amortised on the straight-line basis over the lower of primary period of lease.

Depreciation on leased assets is in line with the depreciation policy of the Company and is depreciated
over the lower of useful life of such assets and the lease period.

d} Intangibles Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost, After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated useful lives, from the
date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of
the asset. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortised on straight line basis.

The cost of Intangible assets is amortized over a period of four years the estimated economic iile of the
assets.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each {inancial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Transition to Ind A8

On transition o Ind AS. the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible
assets recognised as at 1 April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of such intangible assets-Note 2.36

e} Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cwrrent/non-gurrent
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

{a) expected to berealised in, or is intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

(b) held primarity for the purpose of being traded;

{¢) expecled to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

{d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

{e) itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

(fy itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

(g) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(h) the Company does not have an uncondiiional right to defer setilement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabiiities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ciassified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

f) Impairment
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
creditBimpaired. A financial asset is ‘creditBimpaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimenta)
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
expected credit josses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maxinum period considered when estimating
expected credit losses is the maximum contractuai period over which the Company is exposed to credit
risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportabie information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
30 days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is 90
days or more past due.
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Minda Management Services Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls {iL.e. the difference between the cash flows due 1o the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of aflowance for expecied credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units {CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
[ess costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets {e.g.. central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do
not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and less. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews aw each reporting date whether
there {s any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment toss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

g) Non-current assets or disposal group hield for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups. are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Any resultant {oss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining
assets and Habilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets,
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deferred tax assets, and employee benefit assets, which continue 10 be measured in accordance with the
Company’s other accounting policies. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains
and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property and plant and equipment are no longer
amoriised or depreciated.

h) Revenue recognition

(i) Service revenue is recognized on an accrual basis as and when the services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the underlying contract.
(it} Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method,

i} Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date} at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are
not provided for.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penaities, efc. are
recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred. and the amount can be estimated reliably.

i) Provisions (other than employee benefits)
Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-
term cash bornus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity seitled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised
as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate
of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do
meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment
awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation 0 pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fitnd and ESI to Government administered
fund which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the yelated service.

Defined benefit plan

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. The fair value of plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the delined benefit
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plans, 1o recognise the obligation on net basis. The calculation of the Company’s obligation is performed
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets {excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit Liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
refated to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit that
relates 1o past service (“past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The company recognises gains and josses on the settlement of a
defired benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of empioyment. Since the compensated
absences do not fzll due wholly within twelve months afler the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the
end of such period, the benefit to such extent is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company
records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and Josses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

k) Income taxes
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. [t is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legaily enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabitities in a transaction that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that {fisture
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the company recognises
a deferred tax asset oniy to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
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asset can be realised. Deferved tax assets — unrecognised or recognised. are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the refated
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date. to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
lizbilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the
year in which the timing differences originate.

I) Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events of bonus
issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at
a later date.

m} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

1) Employee stock option schemes

Under employees stock eption scheme of Minda Corporation Limited the grant date fair value of options
granted to employees of the Company is recognized as an employee expense, over the period that the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the options and correspondingly created in Capital Reserve,

The expense is recorded for each separatety vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance,
multiple awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of siock
options that vest. For the option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing model
{Black Scholes Merton). Corresponding balance of a share based payment reserve is transferred to general
reserve upon expiry of grants or upon exercise of stock options by an employee. as the Minda Corporation
Limited is operating the Employee Stock Option schemes through Minda Corporation Limited Employee
Stock Option Scheme Trust.
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Minda Management Services Limifed
Notes to the [inancial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

2.3 Non-current financinf asset- investment

¥ in million

Particuinrs

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

Asal
1 Aprit 2016

Investment in equity instruments of Jointly control entity

at cost unquaoted equity instruments

21332700y equity shares of T 10 each fuily paid up n 0.06 0.00 0.00
Mmda VAST Access Systems Private Limited
0.00 0.00 0.00
2.4 Non-current loans
T in million
Particulars As at Asat As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Security deposits 1.89 219 2.66
Security deposits to related parties 0.60 G.60 0.60
.49 2.79 3.26
2,5 Deffrred Tax Assets (ret)
T in miflion
Particulars As at As at As at

31 Muarch 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Deferred tax assets

Provisien for employee benefits 6.63 623 5.97
Provision for doubtful trade receivable 3.25 390 3.90
On account of difference between book written down value - -
and tax writien down valus of fixed assets 183 0.87 0.20
Brought forwards losses - 7.52 -
MAT Credit Entitiement 123 . .
Total (A) 12.95 18.54 10.07
Deferred tax liabilities
- Others to other comprehensive income 0.49 - -
Total {(B) 0.40 - -
Deferred tax assets (net) (B-A) 13.35 18.54 10.07
2,6 Non-current tax assets {net}
¥ in million
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2036
Tax deducted at Source 72.25 97.22 9275
Less:- Provision -24.00 -36.50 -38.7
18.25 6(.72 53.98




Minda Management Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

2,7 Trade Receivable
Tin miflion
Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I Aprit 2016

Unsecured. considered good.unless otherwise stated
Trade receivables

Considered goad 138.33 113.83 144.23
Considered doubtful i1.79 11.79 11.79
150.12 125.62 156.02
Less: Provision for expected credit loss -11.79 -11.79 -11L.79
138.33 113.83 144.23

2.8 Cash and cash cquivalents
Tin million
Particulars As at Asat As af
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016

Cash and cash equivalents

-Cash on hand / imprest with employees 0.13 032 0.81
~Cheques, drafts on hand - 0.20 0.33
0.13 0.52 1.14
Balances with bank
- On current accounts Q.16 0.30 341
- Other bank balance 1.45 235 -
1.61 2.85 5.41

1.74 3.37




Minda Management Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

2.9 Other bank balances

Zin millton

Particulars

Asat
31 Mlarch 2018

Asat
31 March 2017

Asat
I April 2016

Batance with bank

-Dreposits due o mature witihin 12 month * - 0.87 0,81
- 0.87 81
* Pledged against bank guarantee given to income Tax department.
2.10 Current financial asset- other financial asset
Tin million
Particulars As at As at Asat

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Interest accrued on fixed deposits - 0.03 0.03
Advance to Employees 6.14 286 3.87
6.14 2.89 5.90
2.11 Other current assets
T in million
Particulars Ag at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I Apri 2016
Preapaid expenses 291 8.30 922
Balances with government authorities 655 117 1.16
Advances to suppliers 0.9] 0.18 018
Rent in Advange 17.95 17.96 -
28.32 27.61 10.56
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Minda Management Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

2.13 Other equity

¥ in million

Particulars

Asaf
31 March 2018

Asat
31 March 2017

Asat
[ Aprii 2016

2.[3.} Retained earnings

Opening bzlance 48,08 67.20 61.71
Add:- Net profit (logs) for the vear 10.94 -18.22 3.49
Closing balance 56.92 48.98 67,20
2.13.2 Employee stock compenstation outstanding Account
Opening balance - B
Add: Empioyee stock compensation expense - -
Closing Balance - -
21.13.3 Other compehensive income-Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans, net
Opening balance 1.23 - -
Add / (iess) : Remeasurement of define benefit obiigation 1.05 1.23 -
Closing balance 2238 1.23 -

68.35 50.21 67.20
2.14 Non Current Borrowings

T in million

Particulars As at Asat Asat

31 Mairch 2018

3% March 2017

1 April 2016

Secured loan

Term loans

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 31.91 - -
31.91 - -
Less : Current suaturities of non-current borrowings -16.87 . _
15.09 - "
Vehiele Loan
*secured against hyphotication of respective vehicle financed by them.
2,15 XNon-current provision
T in million
Particulars Asat As at Asal

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Provision for employee benefits

Grawity 14.18 10,78 9.94
Leave encashiment 9.15 7.50 7.49
23.33 18.28 17.43
2.16 Siof terms borrowings
¥ in million
Particufars As at Asat Asat

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

2.16.1 Secured
Cash credit and working capital demand loan

from Kotak Mahindra Bank Linited 50.00 79.21 47.74
from Yes Bank Limited - 0.25 25,01
50.00 79.46 7275
2.16.2 Unsecured
from Minda Corperation Lhnited- Holding Company - - 6.63
- - 6.65
30.00 79.46 79.40
Notes
1 Overdrafi from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is secured by hvpothecation on the entire current assats of the C ompany both present

and future. 1t is firther guaranteed by Minda Corporation Limited. Holding Company.
2 Overdraft from Yes Bank Limited is secured by the corporate guaranteed given by Minda Corporation Limited, Holding C ompany.



Minda Management Services Limited
Notes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 5t March, 2018

1,17 Curreat financial lizbilities-Trade payables
Zin million

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
31 March 201§ 31 March 2017 1 April 20E6
Trade payables
To related party
-Minda Furukawa Electric Private Limied 4.34 4.76 4.80
To others 16.33 16.35 1147
20.87 2L11 16.27

The Ministry of Micro and Small Enterprises has issued an Qffice Menorandum dated 26th August, 2008 wiich recommends that the Micro and the Small
Emerprises should mention m {heir correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs' Memorandum Number as allocated afier fi ling of the Memorandum.
Based on the information available with the management, there are no everdue ouistanding 10 Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in Micro, Small ang
Mediuny Enterprises Development Act. 2006. Further the company has not received any claim for interest from 7 any supplier ender the said Act

2,18 Other financial liahilities

T in miltion
Particulars As at Asat Asat
31 Marvch 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Current maturities of Jong-tenm borrowings
-Vehicle loan 16.82 - -
Interest acerued 0.61 - -
Salary Payable 2475 5.74 6.30
Other expenses 3.69 4.37 3.24
45.87 10.11 9,74

2,15 Other currens linhilities
T in miltion
Particulars Asat As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2087 1 Apcit 2016

Statutary dues

-Services Tax - 0.12 0,34

-Goods and Services Tax 5. - -

-Tax deducted at source 438 773 4.99

-Social Security Tax - .

-Provident and otlier fund 2.28 1,67 1,63
£2.02 9.52 6.86

2,20 Current provision
T in miltion
Particulars As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 FAprii 2016

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 0.26 0.21 0.21
Leave encashment 0.46 0.41 2
0.92 0.62 0.63

Rﬂgn No. gggggof
NEW DELF:



Minda Management Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

2,21 Revenue from operations

T in million

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Management Fees
Other Operating Income

Revenue from operations

2.2Z Other income

360.73 31282
215 1.67
362.88 31449
2 in million

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Exchange Fluctuation gain (Net)

Interest Income from
Bank
[ncome Tax refund

2,23 Employees benefits expenses

2.35 -

0.01 0.06
4.78 337
7.14 3,33

¥ in million

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Salaries. wages and allowances
Contribution to provident and other fund
Sacial security taxes

Leave encashment

Gratuity

Stafl welfare expenses

Employees Stock Compensation Expenses

160,75 161.84
1099 1020
0.74 0.34
243 370
6.71 261
4.65 522
6.15 -
192.44 183.91




Minda Management Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2018

2.2+ Finance Cost

% in million

Particnias

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Interest expense
- banks
- others

2.25 Other Expenscs

5.83 7.73
1.83 643
7.80 8.16

T in million

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

iease Rent 4.84 18.27
Rent 3.68 6.19
Rates and Taxes 6.73 2.37
Fee and Subscription G.96 0.71
Electricity Expenses 477 337
Insurance 2352 238
Books and Periodicals 0.09 0.07
Communication Expenses 6.22 6.76
Donation - 0.03
Printing and Stationery 032 0.83
Travelling and Conveyance 44.28 40.95
Auditors Remuneration .
- as auditors 0.45 045
- for tax audit 0.05 0.05
-for limited review 0.23 0.23
- for other services 0.03 0.25
Legal and consuitancy charges 35.60 27.86
Miscellaneous Expenses 10.17 7.35
Computer expenses 0.47 0.32
Caorporate Publicity 4.84 434
Recruitment charges 1.81 1.69
Conference and Seminar 1.76 316
Repairs -Others 7.60 5.87
Entertainment 0.74 0.89
Guest House expenses 449 8.94
Loss on sale of fixed assets / write off 0.09 0.18
Exchange fluctuations Loss (net} - 1.i19
Bank charges 0.25 0.23
138.99 146.93




Minda Management Services Limited
Nates forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh, 2015

226 Accounting for leases

Operating leases- As a lessee

The Company has taken on Jease, accommodation for factory, offices and cars. wilh an option of renew
case. The leases are (e nature of canceilabie operating ieases, Lease rentals amounbing ro ¥ 48,35

1.86,24.6711 m respect of such Jeases have been recogmzed n the siatement of profiz and toss for the vear.

227 Expenditure m foreign currency

T in miilion

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

al at the end of the lease tenm and escalation clauge p 4
922 (31 March, 2017: T 1.82.68.649 01 Apnl 20i6: ¥

Lepal and professional expense 0.88 -
Travelling and conveyance 7.21 8.05
MiseeHaneous 0,08 -

8.17 8.03

2.28 Unhedged foreign currency expostre
P Particulars of unhedged foreign cursency exposure as at the reporting date
The year end foreiun currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or atherwise is a5 follows:
Asat As at Asat

31 Mar 2018 31 March 2017

B Apzil 2016

Particulars Amount {in Amount (in Amount (in
Tin million original Tin miition original Tin million original
currency) cureency) currency)
Receivables in forgjon currency
Management and Business support fees
-EURO 24.53 304,231 11.45 165.355 26,86 357,615
-LJSD 6.06 93,216 0.41 6,286 0.20 3,084
Pavables in foreign currency
import of services
-USD 0.04 643

The nbove does not include any foreign currency expestres from investment in bedy corporate outside India, which as treated as non- integral in nature,

229 Related party disclosures as required under India Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 24 "Related party disclosure™:

A} Related parties and nature of related party refationship with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a)  Relared parties and natare of related pacty relationships where control exists

Deseription of Relatienship

Nume of the Party

Parent

Enterprises over which key management of the Company
are akle to exercise significant inftuence

Jointly contral entity

ey mangement personnel

Relative of Key management personnel

Minda Corporation Limiteg

Minda Capital Privale Limited, India(formaerly known asMinda Cagizal Limited)
Minda Sai Limited, India

Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited, India

Minda Silca Engineering Private Limited, India

Drorset Kaba Security Sysiems Private Limited, bidia

Minda KTSN Plastic Selution GMBE & Co.KG, Gemmany

Minda Auteimotive Selution Limited, India

PT Minda Automotive, lndonesia

Minda Vietnam Automative Co. Limited, Vietmam

Minda Furukawa Electric Private Limited, India

Minda Scheak Plastic Solutions 8.P. Z 0.0 Poland -

Minda KTSN Plastic Solutions Mexico, S. de R L. ds C.V, Mexico
Spark Minda Foundation, India

Minda Autoelekrik Limited. India

Minda Plastic Solwions tndiz Private Limited, india

Minda Intemational Limited India

Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Mr. Ashok Minda

Mrs Sarika Minda
Mr. Aakasl: Minda




% in mitlion

Halding Company

Assaciate Company

Joint Ventrure

Enterprise in which
diractors of the Company|
and their relatives are

Key Managemeat

Total

Total

Particulars able 10 exercise Persoane!
significant influence:
2017-2018 | 2016-2017 | 2017-2038 | 2016-2017 | 20t7-2018 2016-2017 | Z0L7-2018 | 2036-2017 | 2017-2018 | 20)6-2017 20}7-2018 2046-2017
at i.\fnn:l;cmcm Fees
Munda KTSN Piastic nad Tooling Solutions Sp 2.0.G . - - ~ - - 995 141 B - 496 1.01
EMmda Caonat Private Linsitea - - - ‘ - - - 500 2130 - - 500 2250
Fvimoa Comaration Lumited 0746 ¢ 25 B3 H . - - - - W07 46 0585
{himas KTSN Plashe Sotution GMBH & CG KG - E - - : - - - 0% 2030 - - 3026 930
EMmsa KTSN Plastic Solution Mexico S - - - . 364 - - - Ind -
Alinda Sai Limited - - - - - R6.26 63 83 - - 80 20 6335
Minda Silca Engineering Limited - - - - - . i 362 - - AR2 362
Minda Stonctidge Instruments Linnted - - - - - - 4736 3832 - - 17.96 3852
Mmda VAST Access Systam Private Limited - . - - 1919 1830 - . - - 19.19 1550
PT. Minda Automotive Indonesa . - . - - - 12.06 HRR| . - 12.06 1451
Minda Automotive Solutions Limited - - - - - - e 1362 - - 30.19 1362
Minda Furukawa Elcctric Private Limited - . - - - - 009 ag2 - - o409 02
Minda Vietnam Automotive Company Limited - - - - - - 1483 LR H . - 1.53 218
Dorset Kaba Security Svstems Py Ld - - - - . - 063 R . - a4 .
Mutda Autolehirik Ltd - - - - - - 504 5 0] - - 994 901
TOTAL 10746 95.85 - - 19,19 18.80 134.07 i85.17 - - 360.73 31z.82
3) |Rent Expense
Minda Corporanion Limited 3.60 3.62 - B - - - - . 340 362
N5 Sarika Minda . - N - - - ~ - 058 1.8} 638 1381
Mr. Akash Minda - - - - - - - - 038 LE1 0.38 151
Minda Capital Prnate Limited - - - - - - 150 263 - 1.30 265
¢) ¢Legal & Professianal
Minda Corporanion Linuted itle 330 . - - - - - . i 350
Minda SAT Limited N B - . - - - 620 . N 024
Manda Stonendge lntruments Limited - - - . - - 266 2.46 - - 266 2.46
Minda Sifea Engineering Limited . . . - - . . 312 - - - in
dy {Purchase of Goods and Services
Minda Corporation Limited 267 4.4 - - - - - - . . 167 424
Minda Stoneridoe [ntruments Limited - . . . - - 118 231 - - 118 23t
e} | Interest Expenses
Minda Corporation Lintited - 043 - . - . . - - - - 043
0 {Loan Repayment
Minda Corporation Limited - 693 - - - - - - - . - 685
i | o | b |t e | a [ e ] am [an | ur [Feana] e
a} | Teade receivables
Minda Corporation Limited 20.88 330 - . - . - . - - W58 330
Ninda RTSN Plastic and Tooling Solutions Sp 2.0 0 - - - - - - 0.19 0.06 - - iy 006
Minda Capital Privare Limited - - - - - - 43.06 342 . . 4306 1342
Minda KTSN Phstic Solulion GMBH & CO. KG - - - - . Hal Il 39 - - 244} 1139
Minda Sai Lintited ; - - - - - 1712 1B 90 - - 17.12 1090
Minda Silea Engincering Limited - - - - - - 066 099 . - G466 .99
Minda Stoncridpe Instruments Limited - - - . - - 1335 4195 - - 333 403
Minda VAST Access System Private Limited - - - - 353 325 - - . - $38 323
Mmda Automsotive Soluticas Limited - - - - - - 447 1.91 - - 447 191
PT Minda Automative Indonesia - - - - - - 0.17 0.06 B - 017 0.06
Minda Victnam Automotive Company Limited - - - - - - 0.3 0,34 - - 0l 0.34
Minda KTSN Plastie and Tooling Satutions Mexico - - - - - 68 0.01 - - 368 841
Minda Autoelchurik Lid - - - - - - M 2] - - 14 124
i1} §Sccurity Deposit
Minda Capital Private Linuited - - - - - - 060 840 . . 060 64
Mz Aaknsh Minda - - - - - - - . . 07; - 075
i) |lavestment
Minda VAST Access System Private Limited - - 0.00 0.0 . - . - - - G600 agn
§) |Trade Payable
Minda Furukawa Eleatric Private Limited - - - - - - 454 458 . - 4.54 4.58
k) |Guarantees Obtained
Mbnda Comaoration Limited 8O0 500 - - - B - - - . 3060 5000




MindaManagement Services Limited
Notes hrming part of financiat statements for the year ended 37 March, 2018

25

A

income tax

Amounts recagnised in statement of profit and loss

Zin miliion

Particulzrs

Forthe year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2015

31 March 2017

Current tax

Curreat bear 245 -
Agjustment for pner vears (1261 2.1l
0.19 0.1)
Deferred tax
Orginason and reversal of temporany differences 4.70 (547)
4.7¢ 847
Income tax expense reported in the stalement of profit and loss 4.98 18.36)
Amounts recoprised i olher camprehensive Income/ (expense}
Tin miflion

Particulars

Far the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

For the year caded
31 March 2017

Ineome tax

Remeagurenicnt of post employment benciit obligation a40 -
Income tax recogaised in other compachensive mcomef(expense) 040 -
Reconciliation of effective $ax rale
Reconcifiation of tax expense and the accounting profitf (Toss) multiplicd by domwstic lax rate for the vear ended 3) March. 2014 and 31 March. 2017,
T in million
Parliculars For the year
ended For tie year ended
31 dMarch 2018 31 March 2017
Rale Amount Rale Amipunt
Prafit before tax from continuing operations 1592 (26.59)
Tax using the Compaay's domestic 1ax rate 37.58% 6.00 33.06% {0.00)
Tax cffect of: . N
Non-deductible expenscs 10 64% 169 -0.20% 008
Adjustment in current 1x related to prior years -1418% (2.26) 043% [LARD]
Others (1oel. cffect of tax mte changes over deferrod tax assats) 7.29% 116 -183% G40
Effective tax rate 3.75% 0.60 3A3% 0,43
Movement of temporary differences
T in million
Recognised in| - Lo .
R .
Particalars Asat peofit or loss Feoanied ‘:Ilu?lg; Asat profit f:::fs“:::’il:; Recognised l:ugs: Asal
01 April, 2616 ’3:12;1;,; 2016.17 31 Marcly, 2017 201718 20617.15 31 Mareh, 2018
Deferred Tax Assels
Frovision fer gratvily and compensated absences a7 627 . 6.2 3% - 6.63
Loss allowanee for teadz reecivables 390 - - 3.90 {Q.63) . 324
Loss 10 be earmied forvard 7352 - 732 {152} - -
Difference in book writte down valuz and tax written
down valuz of prepeniy, plant and equipatent 026 0.58 - 085 04y - 1.83
MAT credir entitlement - - - - 122 - 122
A 10,07 §.47 - 18.54 {5.59) - 12,95
Deferred Tax Linbilities
Allowance for trade reccivables . - . - - - .
Qrhers - - - - 040 - 0.40
B - - - - 046 . 0.40
Net deferred tax (A)-{B), 10.67 8.47 15.54 (5.39 - 13.35




dfinda Managemenz Services Limited
MNates forming pare of financial statemenss for the year ended 31 Marcch, 2045

2.31 Emmtoyee benciits

24 Definea zeneribution pians

The Company § emploves provident fund and Empioyec’s stals insurance sghemes are defined contribution plans The foliow ing amoums have Been recogmeed as expense for the

1ear ang siawn ender Empiovee benefits expense m note 2.23

T in million

Particulars

For the year ended
3 March 2008

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

Conribution towards
~Provident fund
-Emplovec state msurance

ik 120
.03 800
[0.9% 10.20

b} Defined benefit ptans Gratuity

In accordance with tie Paymant of Gratwity Act, 1972, the Company provides for grawuy as o defined benefit plan The pratuty plan providkss for a lump sum payinent 16 the
emplgnecs 3l the time of scparation from the serice on compleiion of vested peried of employment 1e. five vears. The Eabiliy of granuy pian is provided based on nctuanai
waluation a5 81 the end of each finanenal year based oo winch the Company contribules the aseorained ability to Life Insurance Corporation of fudia by whom the plan assors are

maintained

T in million

Particulars

For the year ended
3L March 2018

Far the year
ended
3t Mareh 2017

Changes in the present value of the defined beneft pbligation is ns follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the begmning of the vear oo 44
Interest eost G383 [HH3
Acquisition Adjustment 205 0.72
Current saniice cost 247 150
Past senvice cost 340 -
Benefits pad (389 (127}
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation {1.45) (323}
Preseat valve of defined benelit obligation at the end of the vear 346 1098
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit oblization:
Present value of defined bengfit obligatien at the end of Lhe yoar 346 10.9%
Fair vatuz of plan assct at the end of the year . -
Net liability as at the <loso of the year {346} (10.98}
Expenses recognized in {he statement of grafic and loss:
Curzent service cost 247 1RO
Past service cost 340 -
Interest cost 0.83 (21}
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuarial loss / {gain) (145 {1.23)
Expenses recogruzed in the statement of prefit and loss. 5326 1.38
Asat Asat Asat

Particolars

31 March, 2018

31 March, 207

a1 Aprit 2016

Actuarial assurmptions:
Discount rate
Expected rate of retum oa plan assets
Expected salany increase rates
Mortaliy
Emploves ansition rawe
-Up to 30 years of age
-Froni 31 years of age to 44 vears of npe
-Above 44 years of age
Note:

T71%

350%

180% of IALAS 2006-08

3.00%
200%
1 00%

7.54%

5 50%%
100% ol 1ALM 2006-03

5 (0%

350

100%0f IALM 2006-08

360%
200%
1 G0%

The cstumates of future salany increases cobsidered in the actuarial valuation ke into accounl inflation, senigrity, promolion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand

in the employment market.

The diseount rate is estimated based on the prevadding masket vicks of Indian Govennent securitics as at the batance sheet date for the estimated tom of the sbligatien

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasonably possible changes a1 the reporting date to one of the relevant actimral assumptions. holdng other assunprions consiant. would hmve affocted the defined bencfit

obligation by the amounis shown below.

< in million
Parliculars For the year endyd For the year ended
3% Maceh, 2018 31 March, 2087
[ncrease Decrease Inerense Decrease

Discount rate ( -/ + 0.395) [GEA)] 063 {0.50) [T
8£2% 7.2% $.0% 0%
Future sakery growth { - 7+ B 555) 066 (0.462) .54 [LEIN
6% 50% 6% 0%

Rate of retumm on plan assets
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Expected average remaiing werking iives of emploness (vearsj

Although the analysis does not take into accaunt of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan. it does not provide an approximation of the senstivity of the
assumplions shown

Abaturky profile:

Tha table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits t be patd t the current membership of e plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date

2 in millkion

As g Az at

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

0to1 Year 420 w2l
ito2Year 386 28
2103 Year [} 019
304 Year 139 § 89
4105 Year 0.53 .50
5to6 Year 147 LT

6 Year aravards 7355 627

Although the analvsis docs not ke into aeeonnt of the full distribution of cash flows expected wider the plan. it doss not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumiptions shown

¢} Other long term benefit « Compensated absences
The Company operates compensated bsences plan. where in every employec is cutitted 1o the bencfit as per the policy of the Company in this regard. The salany for caleulation of
carmed leav 1 Jast drawn salary. The same is payable during the scnice, carly retirement, withdrmwal of scheme. resignation by employee and upon death of emplovee

An actuanial valuation of Compensaled absence has been carried out by an independent acluany on the basis of the following assumplions:

Assumptions Asat Asat Asat
31 March, 2018 31 March, 207 01 Apeit 2050
Discount mic 771% 7.54% 8.00%
Expaeted snlary incrense rales 550% 5.30% 3.50%
Mortalily 100% of 1ALM 2006-03 100% of IALM 2006-08 10032 of |ALM 2006.68
Employes attrition rate
-Up to 30 years of age 3.00% 300% 300%
-From 31 yoars of age to 44 years of age 280% 2.00% 2.00%
-Above 44 vears of age 160% 1.00% 1.00%

The other loag- term boenefit of compensated absence in respect of employecs of the Company as at 31 Maseh 2018 amounts to T 96,13,291 (31 harch, 2017: 279.05.012. 01
April. 2616: T 79,17.540) and the expense recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss during the vear for the same amounts 10 ¥ 24,43,808 (31 March, 2017 236.97.835. 01
April. 2016: T 31,96,118)

Sensitivity analysis:
Reasonably possible shanges at the reporting date to one of the relovant actuarial assumptions, holdmg other assumplions constant, would have affected the defiued benefis
obligation by the amounis shown below.

. For the year entled For the year endledt
Particulars 31 March, 2015 31 March, 2087
Inerease Degrease Increase Deerense

Diseount rate { - 7+ 0.3%5) (035} 037 (030 D33
82% T2% # 0% 7.0%
Future safary growth ( -/ + (.3%) 0.37 {0.35) 054 {0.32)
6.0% 0% 5.0%% 0%

Expeeted averes renaining working lives of esiployoes {vears)
Alihaugh the analysis does mot 1ake inta account of the full distribution of cash flows expeated wnder the plan, 1t dogs not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of rhe
assumptions shown,

Maturity profile:
The mble below shows the expeeted cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the curent membzrship of the plan based on past service of the emplovoss as at the valuation date:

T in million

Asat Asat

3% March, 2018 31 Margh, 2057

0t0] Year .46 04}
1402 Year 216 0.4
2to 3 Year 0 04
o4 Year oll 203

4 1o 5 Year 058 077
5106 Year 032 G.66

& Year cnwards 506 376

Although the analysts docs nat 1ake into account of the fisd distribution of cosh fluws expected under e plan. it dovs not provide an approximation of the smsitivity of the
assURpLIoNs shown.

Risk Exposure

Through its defiaied benefit plans, the Company 15 evposed 10 a manber of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below

a) Asset volatility

The plan labilities are caleutated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yrelds. if plan asscis underperform this vield. this will create & deficit. Most of the plan assct
investaenls are in fived income securitics with high grades and in government securitics. These are subject to interost rate sisk and e fund manages mierest rte tisk with
derivatives to minimize tisk to an acceptable loevel. A portion of the funds arc invested in cquity securitics and in alicmative investaents which have low correlntion with Lty
scouritics. The cquity securitivs are expeeted (0 cam a returm in excess of the discount sate and contribute to the plaz deficit: The Compans imtends to maintain ths above investment
mix in the continuing vears.

b) Changes in discount rate

A decrenss in discount rate will inereasc plas liabitines. although this will be partially offset by an incrense in the vatue of the plan's bond holdings.

¢} inflation risks

In the plans. the pavisent are not fmhed to the inflatien o this is 3 hess matenal risk

d} Lile cxpectancy

The plas obligations are to provide benefits for the 1ife of the member. 5o increasss i life wspeetancy will result m an mercase i thg pians’ labilities Thus is panticutarly simmfizany
where mflationary increases result in higher sensitavily to changes in life expeelaney.

Regn. No. 002023 X
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The Company ensures that the mvestment positsons are managed within an asset- Hability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed 1o
achieve Jong tenn investnents that are n lme with the obfigations under tie employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Compamy's ALM
objective 15 to match assets 1 the obligations by investing in long-tenn fixed interest securities witl maturities that match the benefit payments as they
fall due and in the appropriate currency.

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matehing e expected casl: outflows arising from the
employee benefit cbligations. The Company lias not changed the processes used to manage Uts risks from previous periods. The Company uses
derivatives to manage some of its risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would ot have o material
impact on the overall Jevel of assets,

2.32 Financial instruntents — Fair values and risk management

fi Financial instrumenis — by casegory amd fair vaiues hierarchy

The foilowing table shows the camying amounts and far value of financial assers and financial Tiabilities. inciuding their Tevels in the fair value
iserarchy.

1. Ason 01 April, 2016
Zin million

Particulars Carrving value Fair vatue nieasurement using
FVTPL |} FV'OCI Amortised cost Taral Level 1 | Level2 Levei 3
Firancial asse(s
Nou-current
(1) Investments in Equity instrument - - - - - - -
(ii) Loans - - 3.26 326 - - -
Current N
(i} Trade receivables - - 144.23 £44,23 - - -
(it) Cash and cash equivaients - . 6.53 6.55 - . .
{iii) Bank bajances other than {iii) above - - 0.81 0.81 . - -
(iv) Other financial assets - - 3.90 5.90 - - -
Total - - 160,75 160,75
Financtal Kabilities
Current
(i} Borrawings - 79.40 79.40 - - -
(i¥) Trade payabies - 16.27 16.27 - - -
{iit) Other firancial liabilities - 9.74 .74 - - -
Tatal - ~ 105.41 105.41

i, Ason 3 March, 2017

T in millian
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FYTPL : FYOC] Amartised cost Taotal Level 2 1 Level2 Level 3

Financial assels
Non-current

(i) Loanss - - 279 L7 - - -
Current -

(i} Tracle receivables - . 115.83 113.83 - - -

(i) Cash and cash equivalents - . 3.37 3.37 - - -

(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above - f 0.87 0,87 - . -

{iv) Other financiai assets - - 2.89 1,89 - - -
Total - - 123.74 123,74

Financial Halbilities

Current
() Bomrowinps - - 79.46 79,46 - - -
(ii) Trade payables - - 21.11 21,81 - - -
(iii) Other financial Habilities - - 10.11 10.11 - - -

Total - - 110.68 110.68
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it

As on 3] March. 2018

¥ in million

Particuiars Carrying valee Fair value measurement using
FVTPL | FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level | | Level2 Lovel 3

Financial assets
Non-citrrent

(i) Investments in Equity instrament - - - -

(ii) Loans - - 249 149 - - -
Curreni

{1) Trade recavables - - 138.33 138.33 - - -

(ti) Cashs and cash equivalents . - 174 L7 - . .

{iii) Crher financial assets - - 6.4 6,14 - - -
Tatal - - §48.70 148.70

Financial liabilities

Non-current
(i) Borrowings - - 15.09 15.09 - . -
Current
(i) Borrowings B - 30.00 50,00 - - -
(i) Trade payables . - 20.87 :0.87 - - -
{iii) Other financial liabilitics - - 45.87 45,87 - - -
Tatal - - 131.84 13154

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate their carrying amousts largely due
to the shor-tenn maturities of these instruments. Accordingly, management has not disclosed fair values for financial instnuments such as trade
recefvables, trade payabiles, cash and cash cquivalents, other current assets, interest scerued on fixed deposits, other current liabilities cle.

The fair value of the financial assets and lizbilities is included at the ameunt at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

There have been 1o transfers between Level 1, Level 2 aud Level 3 for the years ended 31 March, 2018, 51 March. 2017 and 0} April. 2016.

Valuation {echnique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used 1o value non current financial assets and liabitities for whom the fair values have been deiermined based on present
values and the appropriate discount rates of the Company at each balance sheet date. The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of
bomrowings of the Company ar cach balance sheet dite.

Valuation processes

The Company has an established controt framework with sespect to the measurements of the fair values, This inciudes a valuation team 1liat has
overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and reports to Senior Manageinent, The valuation team regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Financiak risk management

The Company has exposure to the foliowing risks arising from financial wstruments:

- Credit risk ;

- Liguidity risk ; and

- Market risk - Foreign exchange

- Market risk - Interest rate

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of direetors has overall responsibility for the establislunent and oversight of the Caipany’s risk management framework. The
board of directors have authorised senjor management 1o cstablish the processes, whio ensures that executive management controls risks through the
mechanism of properly defined framework.

The Company’s fisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and
controls, 1o monitor risks and adherence to Yimits. Risk management policies are reviewed regulariy 10 reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities, The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
contrel cnvironment in whicl alf employees understand their roles and obligations.

eqn, o, 002023 K
NEW DELHI.

@ L



iinda Managemeny Services Limited
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b. Financiai risk management {continued)
{i} Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assefs in the Balarce Sheet:

T in million

Particuiars Asat Asat As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 1.74 3.37 6.35
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 0.87 0.81
Other financial assets 6.14 2.89 3.90

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty o 2 financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customer.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ralings assigned by
domestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure (o the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived
from revenue eamned from customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the ecoromic enviroament in which it operates. The
Company manages its credit risk through credit approvals, establishing eredit limits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of businegs,

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:
¥ in million

Gross carrving amount
As at
31 March, 2017

Asat
31 March, 2018

As at

Particular
articulars 01 April. 2016

Current (not past due)

110 30 days past due 43.59 27.10 26.95
31 to 60 days past due 57.13 5.48 33.29
61 1o 20 days past due 11.95 2.08 3.69
More than 90 days past due # 235.66 79.17 80.30

138.33 113.83 144.23

* The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical
paymeni behaviour.

# The Company based upon past trends determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables outstanding for more than | year past due.

Movement in the loss allowance in respeet of trade receivables: T i million

Particulars For the year ended|  For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 11.79 11.72
Impairment loss recognised / (reversed) - -
Amount wrilten off - -
Balance at the end of the year 11.79 11,79

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wil! encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financiat liabilities that are
settled by defivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach te managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wil
have sufficient liquidity to meet its fabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

flegn. Ko, (02023 8/
NEW DELH:/
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

b. Financial risk management (continued)

The Cempany's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring futare cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met,
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows,
- Maintaining diversified credit lines.

i. Financing arrangements

The conpany had access 0 the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

¥ in million
Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March, 2018| 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016

From Banks - Short Term 13.18 0.53 735

From banks - Long Term - - -
From others - R -

IL. Maturities of finaneial liabilitics

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and

undiscounted:
As at 0F April, 2016 Carrying Contractoal cash flows
amount 0-12 months 1-5 years Total
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - R -
Current liabilities
Borrowings 79.40 79.40 - 79.40
Trade payables 16.27 16.27 - 16.27
Other financial liabilities 9.74 9.74 - 9.74
Total 105.41 103.41 - 105.41
As at 31 March, 2017 - Contractual casl flows
Carrying 0-12 months 15 years Total
amount
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Current liabilities
Borrowings 79.46 79.46 - 75.46
Trade payabies ARE 2111 - 21.1%
Other financial liabilities 10,11 10.13 - 10.1%
Total 110.68 110.68 - 110.68
As at 31 March, 2018 . Contractual cash flows
Carrying 0-12 months 13 years Total
anount
Non-current liahilities
Borrowings - Long Term 15.09 - 15.09 15.09
Current liabilities
Borrowings - Short Term 50.00 50.00 - 36.00
Trade payables 20.87 20.87 - 26.87
Other financial tabilities 43.87 435,87 - 45.87
Total 131.83 116.74 [5.09 131.83
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b Finanoial Sk mahapemenl deantinued:
i} Marael rive

Iefarket sk 15 thie nsk at the fure casi fows of a finareial smsiuient will fucwate besause of cliangas in noarket prices, Market nsk compnises ne fpes of sisk: correngy risk ang
interest ralg nsk. The ofecine of matkel ngk management 15 1o manage and control market risk williin azeepiable ¢ winle op 18 the rlurs,

Curreecy risk

Currengy vish is the sk (fat the future cash flows of & fnancial instrument will Gustvale because of clanges i Torcign exchange raies. The Company is exposed 1o the effects of futtnation
in e prevailing forcipn curreney evebange mics on is fnaacial position and cash Nows, Exposure arisss primandy dus to exchange me 1 iens between Ui i} curreney md
ether currencies from Ilie Compam’s epermting. imesting and finansiag agtivities,

Exnosurc ta cureency risk
The summan of qeiititative datit about the Compiny's eVpASUrS 10 CEARNG Hsk. 38 expressed in Indian Rupeos. a5 ot 33 March, 208, 31 Masch. 2617 and 0l Apnl. 2016 are as bziow

< in millian

Particuinm As at As al As at
31 Mareh, 2018 M Warch, 2017 01 Aprif, 2016
- Foreigrn Forelun
Fo.
mE{:::I:;c"cy Amauntin I curreney Amount in T currency | Amounatin 3
Amount Amount
al assets
Trade receivables
-EURQ 5 165.35% [IEH ERFRGE] 2686
-UsD 006 6,287 L] Lok 02
Financial tiabilitics
Trade payables
-USD 645 [XH] - . - -

Seasitivity analysis

A v possible hening (weat of the Indine Rupee against befow currencies m1 31 March, 201K {previous year eaded as on M March, 2017) would have affected e
measurensanl of finanzial instnunents denominated in functional enrrency and affested cquuy and profit or foss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed ofs forciga currensy
donosminated manctary financial pssats and financial liabitities oulstanding as al the vear end. This analysis assumes thal alf other variables. in pantizular inferest mics, reusin censtant and

Ignores any finpact of forcenst sales and parclinses,
Tin miltian
Particulans ol or loss Eaquitr, net ol 3
31 déarch, 208 31 March, 2017 31 pEarch, 2015 31 March, 2017
Streautlicning Weakeninp Stronuchening Weakening | Strenphening | Weakening Strenpthen: Weahening

135 depreciation £ apprecinlion in Indian
Rupezs against (ollewing lomipn
usp 6.06 .06} 0.04 (0.0} a0z .02} (1143 {a00)
EUR 0.25 (0.25} .11 (.11 0.07 {0.07% 0.04 {0.04)

0,31 .y 012 0.12) 4,08 {0.08) 0.0 {0,04)

USD: United States Dollar, EUR; Evio

Enterost rate risk
Tnierest e risk is 1he risk 1ot e future cash fows of 2 Gnangial instriasent wilh flustuaie because of changes in market inerest rites. The Cempany's main interest me risk arises from
long.ierm borrawings with vanable mics. wiich expase the Company 10 cash Mow imesest rute risk.

Exposurc to inferest vate risk
The Company’s inwrest mic isk arises majory from the company’s borrowing from banks carning Monting rate of inierest. Thess oblignions expases the Compan. 1o cash fiow inicrest
ke risk. The exposure af the Company's borrawing (o imlerest mie chunges 55 reperied ta the manaperien 2 the end of the reparting poried are as fllows

in million

Variable-rate instrumeats Asal Az at Asal
31 March, 201K AL ATaveh, 20171 0L April. 2016

Ternt logns front banks (Non current} 15.09 - -
Tenu foans from banks (current) 16.82 - -
Cash Credif Worksng eapital demand loan ey w47 040
Total #1.91 19,37 79,40

Casht flaw sensitivity analysis for variabievate insteuments
A reasenably possible change ef 5 basis paints (bpst 34 iterest raies a the reporing date would have incrensed {dserensed) equity and profif or loss by thie inpunts sliovn befow  This
analysis assumes that all other variabies. in parncular farcign currency evelunye fles. remain constan

2 in miltion
Particulars Profil ar loss Equity, net of tax

S0 fips increase S0 bps decrease | 58 bps increase {50 bps deerease

Enierest ue teryn 3oans from banks
For the vear ended hMarch 31, 2018 4] (R }] LN w1
Fortiiz year ended March 31, 2017 040 [B.40) 013 (0 13)
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233 Empleyes share-based paymenis pians

Under the employee share based payment plans, cerlain empioyees of the Company are granied stock options of Minda Corparation Limited (MCL"), the parent
entiry. The plan 15 assessed, managed and administersd by MCL All of the plans granied 10 employees by the parent entity are equily-seitled

The Company appiies Ind AS {02 - Share based paynients, to share based payment transactions. Pursuant te this standard, stock options granted to the employee by
the parent entiry are measured at fair vaiue and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the vesting period of the options and crediting deemed capital
conribution in other equity. The fair value of stock options was deiermined by the parent entity using the Black Scholes opticn pricing modet

Under the Plan, upto 5,341,840 stock oplions car be issued 10 cfigible employees of MC1. and its subsidiaries, whether working in tndia or out of India, including
any Director of MCL and its subsidianies, whether whole time or otherwise excluding the Independent Direciors Cptions are to be granted at price equal 10 the
latest available clesing price discounted by 50% or such other percentage as may be decided by the Nomination and Reawuneration Commettee. Under the Plan, each
optron, upon vesting, shall eatitle the ioider 1o acquire one equity share of 7. 2 each. The options pranted wili vest gradually over a penod not eadlier than one year
and not Tater than five years from the cate of Grant of such Options. Vesting of Options &5 a fnction of achievement of performance criteria or any other entena, as
specified by the Commitiee and communicated in the prant leiter

Summary of vesting and lock-In provisions are given below:

Sr. No. Vesting schedule
%% of options scheduled to vest Vesting date Lock-in-period
i 20 1-Apr-18 Nit
2 0% I-Apr-19 il
3 2% 1-Apr-20 Nil
4 40% I-Apr-2i Nil
The movement in the stock eptions under the Plan, during the vear, is set out below:
Particulnys For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March, 20E8 31 March, 2017
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
aptios exereise price (T) eptions exereise price {3)
Outsianding at the beginning of the year - - .
Granted during the year 520,000 50 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the vear - - - -
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year - - -
Exercisable at the end of the year 520,000 50 - -

Employee stock compensation expense in relation to stock options granted 10 employes of companies is T 61.50 Iakhs {Previous year Nil}

Employee stock compensation expense under the Fair Value Method has been derermined based on fair value of the steck options, The fair value of stock options
was determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Particulars
Grant date

7 March, 2017

Expected valatility 47.55%
Risk free interest rate 7.15%
Exercise price () 50.00
Expected dividend yield 054%
Life of aptions (years} 407
Weighted average exercise price 000
Weighted average fair value of options as at the grant date (%) 9200

Expected Option Life

Expected Voladlity

The expeeted option life is assumed to be mid-way between
the aplion vesting and expicy.

Volatility was calculated using standard deviation of daily
change in stock price. The historical period considered for
volatility mateh the expected life of the option

&g No. 602073 b
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.34

Riodef ased Black-Scholes Rlethod

How expected volatility was determined, mcluding an The following factors have been considered:

explanation of the extent to which expected voiatility was (2) Share price (b) Exercise prices (¢) Historical volatility (d)
based on historical velatility: and Expected option life (¢} Dividend Yield

Whether and how any ¢ther features of the option grant
were incorporaled into the measurement of fair value,
such as a market condition.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes 1ssued equity share capital, share premuum and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primazy objective of the management of the Company's capital structure is 10
maintain an efticient mix of debl and equity t order to achieve 2 low cost of capita!, winle taking inte account the desirability of retaining
finaneial Nexibility 1o pursue business opportunities and adequate access to liguidity w mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash
flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issne new shares.

The Company monitors capitat on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is caleulated as Interest-bearing debis less cash and cash
equivalents divided by total czpital {equity attributable 10 owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debis).

¥ in mitlion

Particulars Asat Asat As at
31 March, 2018] 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Borrowings -Short Term 50.00 79.47 79.40
Borrowings -Long Term (including curzent maturity) 3191 - -
Less:- Cash and cash equivalent {1.74} (3.37) {6.56)
Adjusted net debt (A) 80.17 76.10 72.84
Total equity (B) 123.34 105.20 12220
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 63.0% TL.3% 39.6%

Earnings per share
Basic and diluled eamings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit afier tax by she weighted average number of equity
share cufstanding for the year.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March, 2018} 31 March, 2017
Profit after tax attributable to equity sharcholders ¥ in million 11.99 (17.00%
Computation of weighied average number of Equity share of 3. 10 cach - -
- Number of share at the beginning of the Year 3.50 5.50
Total number of equity share oulstanding as at the end of the year 2.00 0.00
Weighted average number of equitv share used in computing basic and diluted earnings per sharg 0.00 0.00
Basic and diluted eaming per equity share of face value of ¥. 10 each 2,18 (3.09)
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®

(ii)

b}

¢}
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236 Explasation of transition o Ind AS

As menuoned in rote .2 (i), these financil sintements for the vear ended 31 March, 2018, are the first financial stazements of the Company prepared in accordance with tne
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under the Companies (indian Accounung Standards) Rules, 2015, For peniods up lo and including the year ended 31 March,
2017. the Company prepared its fmancial statements in accordance with “previous GAAP®, including accounting standards notified wader the Campanies {Accounting
Standards1 Rules. 2006 {as smenced)

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with [nd-AS applicable for periods ended on or after 31 March, 2018, together with the
comparaive period data as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2017, as described in the summary of significanl accounting policies. In preparing these finascial statements,
tie Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at 01 April, 2016, the Company's date of transition to Ind-AS

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company ia restating its previous GAAP finangial statements, including the balance sheet as at 01 April, 2016 and the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March. 2017,

According 1o lnd AS 101, the first Ind AS financial statements must use recognition and measurement principles that are based on standards and interpretations thar are
cifective for the financial year ended 31 March, 2018. These accounting pnincipies and measurement principles must be applied retrospeetively to the dare of transition ta [ng
AS and for ali peneds presenied within the firsi ind AS financial statements. Any resulting differences between carrying amounts of assets and labilities according to Ind AS
07 as of 01Apnil, 2016 comparcd with those presented in the previous GAAP Balance Sheet a5 of 31 March, 2016, were recagnised in equity within the Ind AS Balance
Sheer.

Exemiptions ang exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory excepions applicd in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind A

Transition clections

Esplanation of the Ind AS 10) exceptions and exemptions to the full reirospective application of Ind AS applied by the Company.

[nthe [nd AS opening Balance Sheet as at 01 April. 2016, the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities from the previgus GAAP as at 31 March, 2016 are gencrally recognized
and measured according to Ind AS in effect for the finanoial year ended as on 31 March, 2018 For certain individua! cases, however, Ind AS 101 provides for eptional
exemptions L the general principles of retrospective application of ind AS. The Company has made use of the following exemptions in preparing its Ind AS opening Balance
Sheet.

Ind AS optional exemptions:

Deenied cost for property, piant & equipment, investment propecty and intangible assets

Ind A5 101 pernits a first-time adepter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of'its property, plant and equipment a5 fecognised in the financial statements as at the
date of transition 10 Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use thal as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exgmption can also be used for intangible

assets covered by Ind AS 35 Intangible Assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected (o measure all its property, plant and equipmen: and intangible assets 2t thelr previcus
GAAP carrying vaiue

Invesimuent in Joint Yenture

Investment in subsidiaries/associate in standalone financial statements are casried at cost which is similar to aecounting in previous GAAP. The Company also had oprion 1o
account for investment in subsidiaries/associate a1 fair value,

Ind AS mnndatory exceptions:
Estinastes

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of Lransition to Ind AS shali be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordsnce with previous
GAAP (afler adjustavents to reflect any difference in acsounting pelicies), unless there is objective evidence that these estimates were in error

Ind AS estimates as a1 01 April. 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in canformity with previeus GAAP The Company has made estimates for
fellowing items in accordance with Ind AS al the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

a) Determination of the discounted value for financial instruiments carried st amortised cost
b) Impairmeat of financial asseis based on expected credit loss model

Classification and measurensent of Goaneial nssets

[nd AS 101 requires an entity 1o assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist al the date of transition 10 Ind
AS,

Reconcilintions between previous GAAP and Iud AS:

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive incame and cash fows for priar periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous
GAAP 1o Ind AS -
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{i} Reconcilintion of equity as at 01 April, 2016

¥ in million
Particulars Foot note Amount as per previous Effects of transition to Amount as per
reference GAAP Entt AS Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 21 15.99 - 15.99
Intangible assets 22 .18 - 1.18
Financial assets - -
i, Invesiments 23 0.00 - G.00
ii. Loans 24 316 - 525
Deferred tax assets (neal) 2.5 10,07 10.07
Income tax assets (net) 26 53.98 - 5398
Total non-current assets 34,48 - 8448
Current assets
Financial assets
L. Trade receivables 27 14423 - 144,23
ii.  Cashand cash equivalents 28 6.56 - 6.56
fii.  Other bank balances 29 0.81 - 0.81
iv.  Other financiatl assets 210 5.90 B 3.90
Other cusrent asseis 211 10.55 - 10.35
Total carrent assets 168.05 - 165.05
Total assets 252.53 - 252,33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 212 35,00 - 55.00
Other equity 2 67.20 - 67.20
Total equity i22.20 - 122.20
Linbilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Finaucial Liabilities
i.  Borrowings 214 - - -
Provisions 215 17.43 - 17.43
Total non- current kabilities 1743 - [7.43
Current liabilities
Financizal Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 2.16 79.40 - 79.40
(ii} Trade payables 2.17 16.27 - 16.27
(i) Other financial liabilities 218 9.74 - 9.74
Other current liabilities 219 6.50 - 4.86
Provisions 220 0.63 - 0.63
Total current liabilitics 112.90 - 112,90
Total equity and lisbilities 252.53 - 252,53

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to cenform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpeses of this note.
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(i} Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March, 2017;

T in million
Particulars 0t 1018 Apount as per previous Effects of transitionto Amount as per
reference GAADP™ fag AS
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipnsent 21 1276 1276
Intangible assets 2 0.93 0.93
Financiad assets - -
i lovestments 2z 0.00 0.00
ii. Loans 34 279 279
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 18.54 1834
Income 1ax assets {net) 26 60.72 60,72
Total non-current assets 93.74 95,74
Current assets
Firancial assets
i, Trade receivables 27 113.83 113.83
ii,  Cash and cash equivalens 28 3.37 3.37
ili.  Other bank balances 29 0.87 0.87
v.  Other financial assets 10 2.88 2.88
Other current assets 1 27.60 27.60
Total current assets [48.55 148.55
Total assets 244,29 244.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 212 55.00 33.00
Oiher equity 213 50.20 50.20
Total equity 105.20 105,20
Liabilities
Nen-Curvent Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Barrowings 214 - .
Provisions 213 18.27 18.27
Tatal non- current liakilitics 18,27 18.27
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 2.16 79,47 79.47
(ii) Trade payables 217 2411 2111
(iii) Other financial liabilities 218 10,11 16.11
Other current fizbilities 219 9.52 9.52
Provisions 220 0.62 0.62
Total current liabilities 120.82 120,82
Total equity and liabilities 244,29 24429

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of (his note.
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(iiiy

(iv)

(vH

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Marcl, 2017:

¥ in million
Particufars Font note Amount as per Effeers of transition to Amount as per
reference previpus GAAP» Ind AS Ind AS
Revenue
Revenug from operasions 12 314,49 - 514.49
Other income 132 3.33 - 3.33
Totat Income 317.82 - 317.82
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 223 182.68 123 183.91
Finance costs 224 516 516
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21422 541 - 341
Other expenses 225 146.93 - 146.93
Total expenses 34319 1.23 34441
Profit before tax {25.36) 1.23 (36.59)
Tax expense
Current tax expense - .
Tax expense for carlier years 011 - 0.11
Deferred tax (credit) charpe (8.47) - {8.47)
Profit for the year (£7.00) 1.33 (18.23)
Other comprehensive income
[tems that wilk not be reclassified the statement of prafit and loss
Re-measurement loss/ {gain) of defined benefit obligation - 123 1.23
Income tax relating to refating items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss - . R
Total other comprehensive income! {expense) for the year, net of ¢axes - 1.23 1.23
Total comprehensive incomie for the year (17.00) - (17,00}
*The previeus GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.
Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March, 2007 and 61 Aprit, 2016 Tin mitlion
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March, 2047 01 April, 2016
Totai equity (sharehoider’s funds} as per previous GAAP 3020 67.20
Total equily as per Ind AS 50.20 67.20

Reconciliation of tetal comprelionsive incame/ (expense) for the year ended 33 March, 2017

Particalars

For the year ended
31 March, 2017

Profit for the period as per Previous GAAP

Actarial gain & {loss)

Total adjustments

Profit after tax as per Ind AS

Other comprehensive incame

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March, 2016

{17.60)

{1.23)
(1.23)
(18.23)
1.23

{17.00)

There were no material differences betweer the statement of cash flows preseited under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP except due 10 various re-classification

adjustments recorded under Ind AS and difference in the definition of cash and cash equivalents under these twe GAAPs.
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[o8
1

Motes to the reconcilintions:

Fair valuation of investments

Under the previous GAAP, mvestiment m equity insleuments were classified as long tesm investments bassed on the intended holding period and realisability. Long
lerm mvestments were camied at cost less provision for other than temporary deciine in the value of such snvestments Under the Ind AS, these investments are
required to be measured at fair value

The company has decided 10 use the previous gap carfysag value ana not to fair vaiue its mvestments i jaintly controlied entity as on the date of transition.

Security deposits
Under the previeus GAAP, mlerest free secunty ceposits {that are refundabie i cash on completion of the term) are recorded af their transaction value Under Ind
AS, such financial assels are required to be recogmised milially at thewr amortsed cost

Employee benefits: Remeasnrerent of post employment benefit plans

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses on the net defined benefit Liability are recogused in other comprehensive inceme instead of statement
of profis and loss. Under previous GAAP these were forming part of the statement of prafit and loss for the year. As o result. loss or the year ended 31 March, 2037
is increased by T32,28,585 and is reclassified (o other comprehensive income. There is u impacs en the total equity as at 31 March, 2017

Deferved tax

Previous GAAP sequires Geferred 1ax accounting usmy the income stasement approach, which focuses on differences between 1zxable profits and accounting profits
for the perod. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the
earrying amount of an asset or Hability in the balance sheel and its tax base.

tn addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. Deferred 1oy adjusiments are recognised in correlation 1o the ynderlying transaction
cither in reserve and surplus ar a separaie component of equity. On the date of transitien (i.¢ G1 April, 2616), the net impact on deferred t1ax liabilities is of TNIL
lakhs (31 March, 2017: £1,85,35,400 ). The profit and 101al equity for the year ended 31 March, 2017 increased by 321,368,989 due to differences in taxable profits
and accounting profils.

Other comprehensive income

Under previous GAAP, there was no requirement 1o disclose any item of statement of profit and loss i other comprehensive income. However as per requiremient of
ind AS cerain items of profit or loss are 1o be reclassified to other coraprehensive 1ncome. Consequent Lo this. the Company has reclassified remeasurement of
defined benefit plans from the statement of profit and loss to olher comprehensive income

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of inforniation and documents as required by the transfer prieing fegislation under section 92-
93F of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Since the law requires existence of such informalion and documentation to be conteniparanzous in nature, the Company 15 in the
process of updating the documentation for the transactions entered into with the associsted enterprises during the financial year and expecis such records 1o be i
existence Iatest by due date as required under the faw. The management is of the opinion that its transactions with the associated enterprises are al arm’s length so
that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, panicularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

The Company operates only in one busimess scyment i.2. management consuitancy and DUsSiness SUPROTL SEIVICES 10 Yroup COMPanies so segment disclosures required
wn aceordance Ind-AS 103 are not applicable to the company

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foresecable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed
and noted that there are no foreseeable losses on lony term contracts. Accordingly, no provision 15 required 1o be created in the books of account under any faw /
accounting standards

The previous year figures have been reclassified to conferm to cuzrent period's classification and in accordance with schedute 111 This does not impact recogmition
and measurement principles followed for preparation of financiat statements

Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes from 1 to 2.40 form an integral part of the financial statements
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